

References

- Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS)** (2005) *Religion or belief and the work place*. ACAS Publications. www.acas.org.uk
- Age Concern España** (2008) www.acespana.org
- Anderson, KM** (2007) Charting a course into the unknown: Banda Aceh, Indonesia, Tsunami, 2004. *Perspectives in Psychiatric Care*, 43(1): 47–51.
- Arber, S** (2006) Gender trajectories: How age and marital status influence patterns of gender inequality in later life. In Daatland, S and Biggs, S (eds) *Ageing and diversity*. Bristol: Policy Press.
- Avramov, D and Maskova, M** (2003) *Active ageing in Europe*. Strasbourg: Council of Europe.
- Barker, P and Buchanan-Barker, P** (2005) *The tidal model: A guide for mental health professionals*. Hove: Brunner-Routledge.
- Barnes, C, Mercer, G and Shakespeare, T** (1999) *Exploring disability: A sociological introduction*. Cambridge: Polity Press.
- BBC News** (2006a) People trafficking centre opens. 3 October 2006.
<http://news.bbc.co.uk>
- BBC News** (2006b) Man guilty of 21 cockling deaths. 24 March 2006.
<http://news.bbc.co.uk>
- BBC News** (2008a) Charities fear over failed banks. 10 October 2008.
<http://news.bbc.co.uk>
- BBC News** (2008b) In full: Councils facing losses. 17 October 2008.
<http://news.bbc.co.uk>
- BBC News** (2008c) Job fears over Iceland investment. 29 October 2008.
<http://news.bbc.co.uk>
- Bell, D** (1980) The social framework of the information society. In Forester, T (ed) *The microelectronic revolution: The complete guide to the new technology and its impact on society*. Oxford: Blackwell Publishing.
- Bennett, T, Savage, M, Silva, E, Warde, A, Modesto, G-C and Wright, D** (2006) *The social organisation of media practices in contemporary Britain. A report for the British Film Institute*. www.bfi.org.uk
- Beresford, P and Croft, S** (2004) Service users and practitioners reunited: The key component for social work reform. *British Journal of Social Work*, 34(1): 53–68.
- Berry, L** (2006) A view from the General Social Care Council. In Lyons, K and Littlechild, B (eds) *International mobility of labour in social work*. Birmingham: Venture Press.
- Beveridge, W** (1942) *Social insurance and allied services*. London: HMSO.

- Blakemore, K and Boneham, M** (1994) *Age, race and ethnicity*. Buckingham: Open University Press.
- Bolloten, B and Spafford, T** (2005) *Refugee and asylum seeker children in UK schools*. National Association for Language Development in the Curriculum (NALDIC). www.naldic.org.uk
- Bonnetti, L and Manfredi, F** (2007) *Examples of good practice in elder care in the Parma municipality*. Paper given at EASSW Conference, Parma, Italy.
- Bowker, J** (2005) The rise and rise of the Scottish call centre. *The Scotsman Business*, 12 August 2005. <http://business.scotsman.com>
- Brah, A** (2001) Reframing Europe: Gendered racisms, ethnicities and nationalisms in contemporary Western Europe. In Fink, J, Lewis, G and Clarke, J (eds) *Rethinking European welfare*. London: Sage.
- Bretherton, I** (1992) Attachment and bonding. In Herson, M (ed) *Handbook of social development: A lifespan perspective*. New York: Plenum Press.
- British Association of Social Workers** (2002) *The code of ethics for social workers*. www.basw.co.uk
- British Psychological Society** (2009) *Western and African mental health*. www.bps.org.uk
- Bunting, M** (2005) Consumer capitalism is making us ill: We need a therapy state. *The Guardian*, 5 December 2007.
- Burholt, V** (2004) The settlement patterns and residential histories of older Gujaratis, Punjabis and Sylhetis in Birmingham, England. *Ageing and Society*, 24(3): 383–409.
- Bytheway, B** (1995) *Ageism*. Buckingham: Open University Press.
- Calhoun, C** (1998) Community without propinquity revisited: Communications technology and the transformation of the urban public sphere. *Sociological Inquiry*, 68(3): 373–97.
- Campanini, A** (2007) Social work in Italy. *European Journal of Social Work*, 10(1): 107–16.
- Cannan, C, Lyons, K and Berry, L** (1992) *Social work and Europe*. Basingstoke: Macmillan.
- Carby, HV** (1982) White woman listen: Black feminism and the boundaries of sisterhood. In Centre for Contemporary Cultural Studies, *The empire strikes back: Race and racism in 1970s Britain*. London: Hutchinson Education.
- Carers UK** (2007) Support for Black, Asian and minority ethnic carers: A good practice briefing. www.carersuk.org
- Carey, M** (2008) What difference does it make? Contrasting organisation and converging outcomes regarding the privatisation of state social work in England and Canada. *International Social Work*, 51(1): 83–94.
- Casciani, D** (2005) *Morecambe Bay: One year on*. BBC News, 5 February 2005. <http://news.bbc.co.uk>
- Castells, M** (2001) *The internet galaxy: Reflections on the internet, business and society*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.

- Castles, S and Miller, MJ** (1998) *The age of migration: International population movements in the modern world*. London: Macmillan.
- Cemlyn, S and Briskman, L** (2003) Asylum, children's rights and social work. *Child and Family Social Work*, 2003 (8): 163–78.
- Centre du Rhône d'Information et d'Action Sociale en faveur des retraités et des personnes âgées (CRIAS) (2008) www.crias.asso.fr
- Centre Pluridisciplinaire de Gérontologie (CPDG) (2008) webu2.upmf-grenoble.fr
- Chand, A** (2001) The overrepresentation of Black children in the child protection system: Possible causes, consequences and solutions. *Child and Family Social Work*, Vol. 5, 67–77.
- Chevigny, B** (2007) *Child soldiers demobilised in the Central African Republic*. UNICEF. www.unicef.org
- CIA World Factbook** (2009) www.cia.gov
- Clarke, C L** (2000) *Social work ethics: Politics, principles and practice*. London: Macmillan Press.
- Cochrane, A and Clarke, J** (1993) *Comparing welfare states: Britain in an international context*. London: Sage Publications in association with the Open University.
- Cohen, S and Scull, A** (eds) (1983) *Social control and the state*. Oxford: Blackwell.
- Contact a Family** (2008) *Counting the costs*. London: Contact a Family. www.cafamily.org.uk
- Conway, J, Little, P, and McMillan, M** (2002) Congruence or conflict? Challenges in implementing problem-based learning across nursing cultures. *International Journal of Nursing practice*, 8(5): 235–39.
- Cooper, D** (1968) *Psychiatry and anti-psychiatry*. London: Tavistock.
- Cox, D and Pawar, M** (2006) *International social work: Issues, strategies and programs*. London: Sage Publications.
- Crawford, L and Walker, J** (2003) *Social work and human development*. Exeter: Learning Matters.
- Crawford, L and Walker, J** (2008) *Social work with older people*. 2nd edition. Exeter: Learning Matters.
- Crawley H.** (2006) *Child first, migrant second: Ensuring that every child matters*. Immigration Law Practitioners Association (ILPA) Policy Paper. London: ILPA.
- Cree, VE and Davis, A** (2006) *Social work: Voices from the inside*. London: Routledge.
- Cronin, M, Mama, RK, Mbugua, C and Mouravieff-Apostol, E** (2006) Social work and the United Nations. In Hall, N (ed) *Social work: Making a world of difference: Social work around the world IV*. Oslo: IFSW/FAFO.
- Curtis, P** (2007) Record exodus leaves ageing Blighty. *The Guardian*, 23 August 2007. www.guardian.co.uk
- Deegan, P** (1996) Recovery as a journey of the heart. *Psychiatric Rehabilitation Journal*, 19(3): 91–97.
- Department of Health** (2001) *National service framework for older people*. www.dh.gov.uk

- Department of Health** (2004a) *The ten essential shared capabilities: A framework for the whole of the mental health workforce*. London: DH Publications. (Online version accessible at: www.mhhe.heacademy.ac.uk)
- Department of Health** (2004b) *Religious and cultural awareness – a guide*. www.info.doh.gov.uk
- Department of Health** (2007) *Putting people first: A shared vision and commitment to the transformation of adult social care*. www.dh.gov.uk
- Dingwall, R, Eekelaar, J and Murray, T** (1995) *The protection of children: State intervention and family life*. Oxford: Basil Blackwell.
- DirectGov** (2008) *Definition of 'disability' under the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA)*. direct.gov.uk
- Disability Discrimination Act**, 1995. HM Government. London: The Stationery Office.
- Disability Discrimination Act**, 2005. HM Government. London: The Stationery Office.
- Disability Knowledge and Research Programme** (2008) *Lessons from the Disability Knowledge and Research Programme*. www.disabilitykar.net
- Disability Rights Commission** (DRC) (2005) *Disability Rights Commission submission to the Equality Review, 2005*. www.equalityhumanrights.com
- Disability Rights Commission** (2007) *Disability briefing May 2007*. www.equalityhumanrights.com
- Disabled People's International** (2005) *DPI Position Paper on the Definition of Disability*. v1.dpi.org
- Dodds, I and Johannesen, T** (2006) *Forward: Fifty years of IFSW*. In Hall, N (ed) *Social work: Making a world of difference: Social work around the world IV*. Oslo: IFSW/FAFO.
- Domicile collectif Nantes et communauté urbaine* (2008) www.nantesentourage-clic.nantes.fr
- Donnelly, M** (1992) *The politics of mental health in Italy*. London: Tavistock/Routledge.
- Dorling, D and Thomas, B** (2004) *People and places: A 2001 census atlas of the UK*. Bristol: Policy Press.
- Dosanjh, JS and Ghuman, PAS** (1997) Punjabi child rearing in Britain: Development of identity, religion and bilingualism. *Childhood, a Global Journal of Child Research*, 1997 (4): 285–303.
- Durkheim, E** (2002) *Suicide*. London: Routledge (first published: 1887).
- Elliot, L** (2008) UN poised to play 'catch-up'. www.guardian.co.uk
- Elliot, L and McCurry, J** (2008) Biggest economies caught in 'storm of the century'. *The Guardian*, 31 October 2008. www.guardian.co.uk
- Faragher, EB, Cass, M and Cooper, CL** (2005) The relationship between job satisfaction and health: A meta-analysis. *Occupational and Environmental Medicine*, 62(2): 105–12.
- Finkelstein, V** (1981) Disability and the helper/helped relationship: A historical view. In Brechin, A, Liddiard, P and Swain, J (eds) (1981) *Handicap in a social world*. London: Hodder and Stoughton.

- Foucault, M** (1967) *Madness and civilisation*. New York: Pantheon Books.
- Foucault, M** (1977) *Discipline and punish*. Harmondsworth: Penguin.
- Franklin, B** (ed) (2002) *The new handbook of children's rights: Comparative policy and practice*. London: Routledge.
- Fromm, E** (2002) *The sane society*. London: Routledge Classics (originally published in 1955, New York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston).
- Fryer, D** (1995) Labour market disadvantage, deprivation and mental health. *The Psychologist*, 8(6): 265–72.
- Gbla, O** (2003) Conflict and post-war trauma among child soldiers in Liberia and Sierra Leone. In Sesay, A (ed) *Civil wars, child soldiers and post conflict peace building in West Africa*. Lagos: AFSTRAG.
- General Social Care Council** (2007) *Protection, professionalism, pride: Annual report 2005–2006*. www.gsc.org.uk
- George, J** (1997) Global graying: What role for social work? In Hokenstad, M and Midgley, J (eds) *Issues in international social work*. Washington, DC: NASW Press.
- Geyer, R** (2000) *Exploring European social policy*. Cambridge: Polity Press.
- Gittens, D** (1997) *The child in question*. London: Palgrave Macmillan.
- Glyn, A.** (2006) *Capitalism unleashed: Finance, globalisation and welfare*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Goffman, E** (1961) *Asylums*. Harmondsworth: Penguin.
- Government of Ireland** (2006) *A vision for change: Report of the Expert Group on Mental Health Policy*. Dublin: Department of Health and Children/The Stationery Office. (Online version available at: www.dohc.ie)
- Graham, M** (2002) *Social work and African-centred world views*. Birmingham: Venture Press.
- Gray, M and Fook, J** (2004) The quest for a universal social work: Some issues and implications. *Social Work Education*, 23(5): 625–44.
- Hall, N** (ed) (2006) *Social work: Making a world of difference: Social work around the world IV*. Oslo: IFSW/FAFO.
- Harding, L** (2006) German birth rate falls to lowest in Europe. *The Guardian*, 15 March 2006.
- Hayes, D and Humphries, B** (2004) *Social work, immigration and asylum*. London: Jessica Kingsley Publishers.
- Health Care Commission** (2005) *Count me in: Results of a national census of inpatients in mental health hospitals and facilities in England and Wales*. London: Commission for Health Care Audit and Inspection.
- Healy L** (2001) *International social work: Professional action in an interdependent world*. Oxford: Oxford University Press.
- Healy, L and Thomas, R** (2007) *International social work: A retrospective in the 50th year*. *International Social Work*, 50(5): 581–96.

- Hetherington, R, Cooper, A, Smith, P, and Wilford, G** (eds) (1997) *Protecting children: Messages from Europe*. Lyme Regis: Russell House Publishing.
- Heywood, J** (1978) *Children in care: The development of services for the deprived child*. 3rd edition. London: Routledge Kegan Paul.
- HM Government** (2003) *Every child matters: Change for children*. www.everychildmatters.gov.uk
- Høiskar, AH** (2001) Under age and under fire: An inquiry into the use of child soldiers, 1994–98. *Childhood*, 2001 (8): 340–60.
- Hokenstad, M and Midgley, J** (eds) (1997) *Issues in international social work*. Washington, DC: NASW Press.
- Home Office** (2008) *Asylum statistics: 1st quarter 2008 United Kingdom*. www.homeoffice.gov.uk
- Hopton, J** (2006) The future of critical psychiatry. *Critical Social Policy*, 26(1): 57–73.
- Hreinsdóttir, E E, Stefánsdóttir, G, Lewthwaite, A, Ledger, S and Shufflebotham, L** (2006) Is my story so different from yours? Comparing life stories, experiences of institutionalisation and self-advocacy in England and Iceland. *British Journal of Learning Disabilities*, 34(3): 157–66.
- Huegler, N** (2005) *Care and support for young separated refugees aged 16 and 17 in Germany and the United Kingdom*. Birmingham: Venture Press.
- Hugman, R** (1994) *Ageing and the care of older people in Europe*. Basingstoke: Macmillan.
- Hugman, R** (2007) The place of values in social work education. In Lymbery, M and Postle, K (eds) *Social work: A companion to learning*. London: Sage.
- Humphries, M** (1996) *Empty cradles*. London: Corgi Adult.
- Humphries, S and Gordon, P** (1992) *Out of sight: The experience of disability 1900–1950*. Plymouth: Northcote House Publishers.
- Innocenti Research Centre** (2007) *Report card 7: Child poverty in perspective: An overview of child well-being in rich countries – a comprehensive assessment of the lives and well-being of children and adolescents in the economically advanced nations*. Florence: United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF).
- International Association of Schools of Social Work (IASSW)** (2005) *Global standards for social work education and training for social work professions*. www.iasw-aiets.org/
- International Federation of Social Workers (IFSW)** (2000) *Definition of social work*. www.ifsw.org
- International Federation of Social Workers (IFSW)** (2004) *Ethics in social work, statement of principles*. www.ifsw.org
- International Labour Organization** (2006) *Facts on child labour – 2006*. www.ilo.org
- International Labour Organization** (2007) *Equality at work: Tackling the challenges. Global report under the follow-up to the ILO Declaration on fundamental principles and rights at work*. www.ilo.org
- International Social Services UK (ISS UK)** (2008) www.issuk.org.uk

- Islam, Z** (2008) Negotiating identities: The lives of Pakistani and Bangladeshi young disabled people. *Disability and Society*, 23 (1): 41–52.
- Jacoby, R** (1999) *The end of Utopia: Politics and culture in an age of apathy*. New York: Basic Books.
- Kale, R** (1995) South Africa's health: Traditional healers in South Africa: A parallel health care system. *British Medical Journal*, 3(10): 1182–85.
- Kendall, K.** (2000) *Social work education: Its origins in Europe*. Alexandria, VA: Council on Social Work Education.
- Kim, KM** (2008) The current status and future of centers for independent living in Korea. *Disability and Society*, 23(1): 67–76.
- Kohli, R** (2006) The sound of silence: Listening to what unaccompanied asylum-seeking children say and do not say. *British Journal of Social Work*, 36: 707–21.
- Kohli, R and Mather, R** (2003) Promoting psychosocial well-being in unaccompanied asylum seeking young people in the United Kingdom. *Child and Family Social Work*, (8): 201–12.
- Kokai, M, Fujii, S, Shinfuku, N and Edwards, G** (2004) Natural disaster and mental health in Asia. *Psychiatry and Clinical Neurosciences*, 58(2): 110–16.
- Laing, RD** (1967) *The politics of experience and the bird of paradise*. Harmondsworth: Penguin.
- Laming, H** (2003) The Victoria Climbié Inquiry. www.victoria-climbié-inquiry.org.uk
- Lavalette, M, and Ferguson I** (eds) (2007) *International social work and the radical tradition*. Birmingham: Venture Press.
- Lewis, P** (2007) The sorry plight of the refugee children. *The Guardian*, 24 May 2007.
- Littlechild, B, Erath, P and Keller, J** (eds) (2005) *De- and reconstruction in European social work*. Stassfurt: ISIS.
- Lorenz, W** (1994) *Social work in a changing Europe*. London: Routledge.
- Lucock, B, Lefevre, M, Orr, D, Jones, M, Marchant, R and Tanner, K** (2006) *Teaching, learning and assessing communication skills with children and young people in social work education*. Social work education knowledge review 12. Social Care Institute for Excellence. www.scie.org.uk
- Lymbery, M** (2005) *Social work with older people*. London: Sage.
- Lyons K** (1999) *International social work: Themes and perspectives*. Aldershot: Ashgate.
- Lyons, K** (2003) Historical portraits: Dame Eileen Younghusband (Jan 1902 – May 1981). *Social Work and Society*, 1. www.socwork.net
- Lyons, K and Lawrence, S** (eds) (2006) *Social work in Europe: Educating for change*. Birmingham: IASSW/Venture Press.
- Lyons, K and Littlechild, B** (eds) (2006) *International labour mobility in social work*. BASW Monograph. Birmingham: Venture Press.
- Lyons, K and Manion, HK** (2004) Goodbye DipSW: Trends in student satisfaction and employment outcomes. *Social Work Education*, 23(2): 133–48.

- Lyons, K and Stathopoulos, P** (2001) Migration and refugees in Europe: Greek and British perspectives on implications for social work practice and education. *European Journal of Social Work*, 4(1): 55–63.
- Lyons, K, Manion, K and Carlsen, M** (2006) *International perspectives on social work*. Basingstoke: Palgrave Macmillan.
- Macpherson, W** (1999) The Stephen Lawrence Inquiry. www.archive.official-documents.co.uk
- Maiello, S** (2008) Encounter with a traditional healer: Western and African therapeutic approaches in dialogue. *Journal of Analytical Psychology*, 53 (2): 241–60.
- Maslow, AH** (1954) *Motivation and personality*. 2nd edition. New York: Harper and Row Publishers.
- Meeuwisse, A and Sward, H** (2007) Cross-national comparisons of social work – a question of initial assumptions and levels of analysis. *European Journal of Social Work*, 10(4): 481–96.
- Mental Health Act Commission** (2008) *Annual Report*. London: The Stationery Office.
- Mental Health Foundation** (2004) *Black and minority ethnic communities and mental health*. www.mhf.org.uk
- Merton, R** (1957) *Social theory and social structure*. New York: Free Press.
- Mind** (2006) The mental health of the African Caribbean community in Britain. www.mind.org.uk
- Mitchell, D, Traustadottir, R, Chapman, R, Townson, L, Ingham N and Ledger, S** (2006) *Exploring experiences of advocacy by people with learning disabilities: Testimonies of resistance*. London: Jessica Kingsley Press.
- Morris, J** (1991) *Pride against prejudice: Transforming attitudes to disability*. London: The Women's Press.
- Morris, S** (2007) Murder victim was failed by the system. *The Guardian*, 6 December 2007. www.guardian.co.uk
- Muncie, J** (1999) *Youth and crime: A critical introduction*. London: Sage.
- Munday, B** (2007) *Integrated social services in Europe*. Strasbourg: Council of Europe Publishing.
- Mupedziswa, R** (2001) The quest for relevance: Towards a conceptual model of developmental social work education and training in Africa. *International Social Work*, 44 (3): 285–300.
- National Alliance on Mental Illness Santa Cruz County** (2005) *Mental health recovery: What helps and what hinders?* www.namiscc.org
- Nirje, B** (1969) The normalisation principle and its human management implications. In Kugel, RB and Wolfensberger, W (eds) *Changing patterns in residential services for the mentally retarded*. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office. An abridged version can be accessed at: www.socialrolevalorization.com
- Njenga, FG, Nicholls, PJ, Nyamai, C, Kigamwa, P and Davidson, JRT** (2004) Post-traumatic stress after terrorist attack: Psychological reactions following the US embassy bombing in Nairobi: Naturalistic study. *British Journal of Psychiatry*, 185(4): 328–33.

- North, CS, Pfefferbaum, B, Narayanan, P, Thielman, S, McCoy, G, Dumont, C-K, Aya-Ryosho, N and Spitznagel, EL** (2005) Comparison of post-disaster psychiatric disorders after terrorist bombings in Nairobi and Oklahoma City. *British Journal of Psychiatry*, 186(6): 487–93.
- Norward, JN** (2007) Social work and social activism in post-democratic South Africa. In Lavalette, M and Ferguson, I (eds) *International social work and the radical tradition*. Birmingham: Venture Press/BASW/IASSW.
- Office for National Statistics** (2004) *Pupils with statements of Special Educational Needs (SEN): by type of school. Data set 34*. www.statistics.gov.uk
- Office for National Statistics** (2005) *Focus on older people*. www.statistics.gov.uk
- Office for the United Nations High Commission for Human Rights** (2006) *Optional Protocol to the Convention against Torture and other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment*. www2.ohchr.org
- O'Hagan, K** (1999) Culture, cultural identity and cultural sensitivity in child and family social work. *Child and Family Social Work*, 4(4): 269–81.
- Oliver, M** (1990) *The politics of disablement*. London: Macmillan.
- Oliver, M** (1999) Capitalism, disability and ideology: A materialist critique of the normalisation principle. In Flynn, R and Lemay, R (eds) *A quarter-century of normalization and social role valorization: Evaluation and impact*. Ottawa: University of Ottawa Press.
- Palmer, G** (2007) *Disabled people, poverty and the labour market. Updated report*. www.poverty.org.uk
- Palmer, G, Carr, J and Kenway, P** (2005) *Monitoring poverty and social exclusion*. York: Joseph Rowntree Foundation. (The report can be accessed in PDF format at www.npi.org.uk)
- Papadopoulos, RK** (ed) (2002) *Therapeutic care for refugees. No place like home*. London: Karnac.
- Parekh Report** (2000) *The future of multi-ethnic Britain*. London: Profile Books.
- Parker, J and Bradley, G** (2007) *Social work practice: Assessment, planning, intervention and review*. 2nd edition. Exeter: Learning Matters.
- Parker, R** (2007) *Uprooted: The shipment of poor children to Canada, 1867–1917*. Bristol: Policy Press.
- Parkes, CM, Laungani, P and Young, B** (1997) *Death and bereavement across cultures*. London: Routledge.
- Payne, M** (2005) *The origins of social work: Continuity and change*. Basingstoke: Palgrave Macmillan.
- Pease, B and Pringle, K** (eds) (2001) *A man's world? Changing men's practices in a globalised world*. London: Zed Books.
- Petrie, P, Boddy, J, Cameron, C, Wigfall, V and Simon, A** (2006) *Working with children in care: European perspectives*. Maidenhead: Open University Press.
- Phillips, J, Ray, M and Marshall, M** (2006) *Social work with older people*. Basingstoke: Palgrave Macmillan.
- Philpott, J** (2007) Britain's Eastern European migrant workforce. *Impact*, Issue 19: 24–27.

- Pilgrim, D and Rogers, A** (1999) *A sociology of mental health and illness*. 2nd edition. Buckingham: Open University Press.
- Price, V** (2008) *A European approach to day care for learning disabled people: Spot the difference?* Unpublished paper. University of Wolverhampton.
- Price, V and Simpson, G** (2007) *Transforming society? Social work and sociology*. Bristol: Policy Press.
- Pringle, K** (1998) *Children and social welfare in Europe*. Buckingham: Open University Press.
- Quality Assurance Agency** (2008) *Subject benchmark statement: Social work*. QAA 236 02/08. <http://www.qaa.ac.uk>
- Race, D** (2007) *Intellectual disability: Social approaches*. Maidenhead: McGraw-Hill Open University Press.
- Race, D** (ed) (2003) *Leadership and change in human services: Selected readings from Wolf Wolfensberger*. London: Routledge.
- Race, D, Boxhall, K and Carson, I** (2005) Towards a dialogue for practice: Reconciling social role valorization and the social model of disability. *Disability and Society*, 20(5): 507–21.
- Ratha, D, Mohapatra, S, Vijayalakshmi, KM and Xu, Zhimei** (2008) *Revisions to remittance trends 2007*. <http://siteresources.worldbank.org>
- Rethink** (2004) *Recovery: A brief introduction to the recovery approach*. www.rethink.org
- Rethink** (2007) *Who does it affect?* www.rethink.org
- Richman, N.** (1998) *In the midst of a whirlwind: A manual for helping refugee children*. Stoke-on-Trent: Trentham Books/Save the Children.
- Ritzer, G** (1993) *The McDonaldisation of society*. Thousand Oaks, CA: Pine Forge Press.
- Roberts, K and Harris, J** (2002) *Disabled people in refugee and asylum seeking communities*. Bristol: Policy Press and Joseph Rowntree Foundation.
- Rolph, S, Atkinson, D and Walmsey, J** (2003) A pair of stout shoes and an umbrella: The role of the mental welfare officer in delivering community care in East Anglia: 1946–1970. *British Journal of Social Work*, 33(3): 339–59.
- Rolph, S, Atkinson, D, Nind, M and Welshman, J** (2005) *Witnesses to change: Families, history and learning disability*. London: British Institute of Learning Disabilities.
- Ross, S and Brown, C** (2006) Scottish staff stunned by Norwich Union job cuts. *The Scotsman Business*, 15 September 2006. <http://business.scotsman.com>
- Rot, A** (2007) Disability in the Netherlands. Unpublished briefing. HS in Holland, Amsterdam.
- Sanders, M** (2003) Working with interpreters in personal social services. In Kornbeck, J (ed) *Language teaching in social work education*. Mainz: Logophone.
- Schädler, J, Schwarte, N, Wissel, T and Aselmeier, L** (2004) Research feature: Germany. *Tizard Learning Disability Review*, 9(1).
- Scottish Disability Equality Forum (SDEF)** (2007) *Written response to the Scottish Government budget, 2007*. www.scottish.parliament.uk

- Scull, A** (1977) *Decarceration: Community treatment and the deviant – a radical view*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice Hall.
- Scull, A** (1983) Community corrections: Panacea, progress or pretence? In Garland, D and Young, P (eds) *The power to punish*. London: Heinemann.
- Seebohm, P** (2008) *Briefing 35: Evening the odds: Employment support, mental health and Black and minority ethnic communities*. London: Sainsbury Centre for Mental Health. (Online version available at: www.scmh.org.uk)
- Sefton, T, Baker, M and Praat, A** (2006) *Ethnic minorities, disability and a review of the labour market. Ethnicity, disability and work project*. Royal National Institute for the Blind. www.rnib.org.uk
- Seibel, FW and Lorenz, W** (eds) (1998) *Social professions for a social Europe: Conference on the evaluation of the ERASMUS Programme in Koblenz (Germany) 5–7 July 1996*. Frankfurt/M: IKO.
- Shakespeare, T** (2006) *Disability rights and wrongs*. London: Routledge.
- Sheppard, M, Newstead, S, DiCaccavo, A and Ryan, K** (2001) Comparative hypothesis assessment and quasi triangulation as process knowledge assessment strategies in social work practice. *British Journal of Social Work*, 31(6): 863–85.
- Social Care Institute for Excellence (SCIE)** (2006) *Social Care Code of Practice for International Recruitment*. www.sccir.org.uk
- Sozialgesetzbuch IX** (2001) www.sozialgesetzbuch-bundessozialhilfegesetz.de
- Special pedagogiska skol myndigheten (SPSM)** (2008) National Agency for Special Needs Education and Schools. www.spsm.se
- Sriskandarajah, D and Drew, C** (2006) *Brits abroad: Mapping the scale and nature of British emigration*. London: Institute for Public Policy Research.
- Statistics Norway** (2007) *Adoptions, by type of adoption 1966–2006*. www.ssb.no/english
- Swain, J, Finkelstein, V, French, S and Oliver, M** (eds) (1993) *Disabling barriers – enabling environments*. London: Sage.
- Szasz, T** (1971) *The manufacture of madness*. London: Routledge and Kegan Paul.
- Tew, J and Foster, J** (2005) *Social perspectives in mental health*. London: Jessica Kingsley Publishers.
- The Guardian** (2007) Chad accuses French charity of child trafficking. 29 October 2007. www.guardian.co.uk
- The Guardian** (2008) Feeling the squeeze: As the economy tips into recession and public spending takes a hit, will the axe fall on health and welfare services that protect the most vulnerable people? A panel of experts give their views on the potential fallout. *Society Guardian*, 22 October 2008.
- The Scotsman Business** (2006) BT to hire 6,000 in Indian expansion. 14 November 2006. <http://business.scotsman.com>
- Thomas, P** (2005) *Disability, poverty and the millennium development goals: Relevance, challenges and opportunities for DFID*. Knowledge and Research Programme.
- Torres, S** (2006) Making sense of the construct of successful ageing. In Daatland, S and Biggs, S (eds) *Ageing and diversity*. Bristol: Policy Press.

- Tribe, R and Raval, H** (ed) (2002) *Working with interpreters in mental health*. London: Brummer-Routledge.
- Turning Point** (2004) *Hidden lives*. London: Turning Point.
- UNICEF** (2007a) Paris Conference, 'Free Children from War'. www.unicef.org
- UNICEF** (2007b) adapted. www.unicef.org.uk/campaigns
- UNICEF** (2009) *Russian Federation: Statistics*. www.unicef.org
- United Nations** (2007) *World population ageing 2007*. www.un.org
- United Nations** (2008) *United Nations convention on the rights of persons with disabilities*. www.un.org
- United Nations convention and protocol relating to the status of refugees* (1951). www.unhcr.org
- United Nations convention on the rights of the child* (UNCRC) (1989). www.unicef.org/crc/
- United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation** (UNESCO) (2007) *Education for all: Global monitoring report (summary)*. Paris: EFA Global Monitoring Report Team.
- United Nations Population Fund** (UNFPA) (2007) *The state of world population 2007: Unleashing the potential of urban growth*. www.unfpa.org
- US Census Bureau** (2009) *International data base*. www.census.gov
- Van Dyk, A** (2001) *Western and African mental health*. Paper presented at the European Congress of Psychology, 4 July, London. Press release accessible at www.bps.org.uk
- Wlaskamp, C and Poppes, P** (2004) Research feature: The Netherlands. *Tizard Learning Disability Review* 9(1).
- Walker, A and Maltby, T** (1997) *Ageing Europe*. Buckingham: Open University Press.
- Walls, P and Sashidharan, SP** (2003) *Real voices – survey findings from a series of community consultation events involving Black and Minority Ethnic groups in England*. London: Department of Health.
- Warnes, AM and Williams, A** (2006) Older migrants in Europe: A new focus for migration studies. *Journal of Ethnic and Migration Studies*, 32(8): 1257–81.
- Warnes, AM, Friedrich, K, Kellaheer, L and Torres, S** (2004) The diversity and welfare of older migrants in Europe. *Ageing and Society*, 24(3): 307–26.
- Warnes, T** (2006) Older foreign migrants in Europe: Multiple pathways and welfare positions. In Daatland, S and Biggs, S (eds) *Ageing and diversity*. Bristol: Policy Press.
- Weiss, I** (2005) Is there a global common core to social work? A cross-national comparative study on the professional ideology of social work graduates. *Social Work*, 50(2): 101–10.
- Welbourne, P, Harrison, G and Ford, D** (2007) Social work in the UK and the global labour market. *International Social Work*, 50(1): 27–40.
- Winkelmann-Gleed, A** (2006) *Migrant nurses: Motivation, integration and contribution*. Abingdon: Radcliffe Publishing.

- Women's Commission for Refugee Women and Children** (2008) *Disabilities among refugees and conflict-affected populations*. www.womenscommission.org
- World Health Organisation** (2001) *The world health report 2001 – Mental health: New understanding, new hope*. www.who.int
- World Health Organisation** (2005) *The Tsunami and After: WHO's role*. WHO Regional Office for South-East Asia. www.searo.who.int
- World Health Organisation** (2006) *Disability and rehabilitation: WHO action plan 2006–2011*. www.who.int
- World Health Organisation** (2007a) *Mental health: A state of well-being*. www.who.int
- World Health Organisation** (2007b) *Breaking the vicious cycle between mental ill-health and poverty*. Geneva: World Health Organisation.
- World Health Organisation** (2007c) *WHO celebrates International Day of Persons with Disabilities* www.who.int
- World Health Organisation** (2008a) *Policies and practices for mental health in Europe – meeting the challenges*. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe.
- World Health Organisation** (2008b) *Country information*. www.who.int
- World Health Organisation** (2008c) www.who.int
- Yeo, R** (2005) *Disability, poverty and the new development agenda*. www.disabilitykar.net
- Zack-Williams, AB** (2006) Child soldiers in Sierra Leone and the problems of demobilization, rehabilitation and reintegration into society: Some lessons for social workers in war-torn societies. *Social Work Education*, 25 (2): 119–28.